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Dear Mrs Pagdin,
Re: Erection of a single storey rear extension to provide separation between historic fabric and new architecture, removal of rear chimney following replacement of existing porch, demolition of existing store rooms and change of use of first floor from residential (C3) to public house (A4) - The Sun Inn Judge's Hill Northaw Potters Bar EN6 4NL
ARCHAEOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS

Thank you for consulting me on the above application.

Please note that the following advice is based on the policies contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.
The structure subject to the proposed extension and alterations is the Grade II Listed Sun Inn, a 17th century public house, which was extended in the late 18th or early 19th century.  A Heritage Statement submitted with the application concluded that it ‘has a high significance for its likely origins and existing historic phasing only’ and that it warrants its grade II listing (Townscape 2017, 13).
The works proposed appear to be generally sympathetic to the character of the building.  There will, however, be some impact upon historic fabric, particularly the existing chimney breasts in Unit 1, the impact of the extension in Unit 1 and potentially work on the timber frame also in Unit 1.  Alterations throughout will remove modern fabric and expose more of the historic core of the building.
I believe therefore that the proposed development is such that it should be regarded as likely to have an impact on heritage assets of archaeological interest and I recommend that the following provisions be made, should you be minded to grant consent:

1. The archaeological building recording of the standing structure in its present form, before any development commences.

2. The archaeological building recording of all interventions to the fabric of the building in areas where such works might reveal information relating to the development of the building, and for the purpose of recording any original historic features (etc.) that may be exposed.

3. analysis of the results of the archaeological work with provisions for subsequent production of a report(s) and/or publication(s) of these results & an archive;

4. such other provisions necessary to protect the archaeological interests of the site.

I believe that these recommendations are both reasonable and necessary to provide properly for the likely archaeological implications of this development proposal. I further believe that these recommendations closely follow the policies included within Policy 12 (para. 141, etc.) of the National Planning Policy Framework. and the guidance contained in the Historic Environment Planning Practice Guide. 
In this case three appropriately worded conditions on any planning consent would be sufficient to provide for the level of investigation that this proposal warrants. I suggest the following wording:

A No development shall take place/commence until an Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing.  The scheme shall include an assessment of archaeological significance and research questions; and:

1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording;
2. The programme for post investigation assessment;
3. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording;
4. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site investigation;
5. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site investigation;
6. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out within the Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation.
 
B  The development shall take place/commence in accordance with the programme of archaeological works set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A)
C The development shall not be occupied/used until the site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis and publication where appropriate.
If planning consent is granted, I will be able to provide detailed advice concerning the requirements for the investigations, and to provide information on professionally accredited archaeological contractors who may be able to carry out the necessary work.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you require any further information or clarification.

Yours sincerely,

Simon Wood MA MSc PhD FSA Scot
Historic Environment Adviser
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk
